
 
AGENDA 

 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Alan Hart  James Hairston  Ken Witkoe 

Mark Peila  Ray Dotson  Mark Terry  
Council Member Michael Brandstetter, Committee Liaison 

Police Chief Mike Zaro, Committee Staff Support 
 

Regular Meeting, Wednesday, December 2, 2020 at 5:15 p.m 
Zoom Virtual Meeting 

 
Residents can virtually attend the meeting by watching it live on the city’s YouTube channel: 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityoflakewoodwa 
 

Those who do not have access to YouTube can call in to listen by telephone via Zoom: 
Dial +1 253 215 8782 and enter participant ID #: 946 1202 8884 

 
Public Comments will only be accepted via mail or email. Comments should be sent to Joanna LaVergne, 

Administrative Assistant at 9401 Lakewood Drive SW Lakewood, WA 98499 or 
jlavergne@cityoflakewood.us.  Comments received up to one hour before the meeting will be provided to 

the Public Safety Advisory Committee members electronically. 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

 
4. Public Comments 

 
5. City Council Liaison Comments 

• Fireworks Ordinance 
 

6. Fire Department Comments 
• Squad 21 Update 

 
7. Police Department Comments 

 
8. Unfinished Business 

• Work Plan 
 

9. New Business 
• Preview of Next Meeting (February 3rd) 

 
10. Reports from Board Members & Staff 

• Community Outreach Reports & Open Discussion on Public Safety 
• Pending Policy / Ordinance Changes 

 
11. Adjournment 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityoflakewoodwa
mailto:jlavergne@cityoflakewood.us


The Lakewood Police Station is accessible to persons with disabilities.  Persons requesting special 
accommodations or language interpreters should contact Joanna LaVergne, 830-5002, as soon as possible in 
advance of the meeting so that an attempt to provide the special accommodations can be made. 



 1 

  
 

 
 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, October 7, 2020 
Zoom Virtual Meeting 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

      The meeting was called to order at 5:14 p.m. 
 
 
      ROLL CALL 
 

Public Safety Advisory Committee Members Present:  Alan Hart, James Hairston, Ken Witkoe, 
Ray Dotson, Mark Peila, Tod Wolf and Mark Terry 
 
Public Safety Advisory Committee Members Excused:  None 

 
Public Safety Advisory Committee Members Absent:  None 
 
City Councilmember Present:  No Councilmember was able to be present. 
 
Fire Department Staff Present:  Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams 
 
Lakewood Youth Council Present:  No Youth Council this meeting- will make sure they 
receive invitation for December’s meeting.  
 
Staff Present:  Chief Mike Zaro and Committee Staff Support, Joanna LaVergne, 
Administrative Assistant 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Mark Peila motioned to approve August’s meeting minutes.  All ayes; minutes were approved. 
 

 
            PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no public comments. 
 
 



 2 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS  
        
No City Council member was able to be present.  City Council had a special meeting at 6 p.m.  
The new Fireworks Ordinance was discussed with some questions regarding possible typos and 
education. 

  
 

YOUTH COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
No Youth Council; liaison appointed and will be invited to December meeting. 
 
 
FIRE CHIEF COMMENTS 
 
Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams discussed the Fire Department’s Covid precautions and stated 
it had been a busy month for them.  He discussed the Graham and Bonney Lake fires which 
they assisted with, and even gave a shout out to LPD for their teamwork efforts regarding 
abandoned structure fires, and keeping Fire Department personnel safe. 
 
Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams discussed their upcoming Fall Safety Day on October 24th, 
from 10-1, at the 5000 Steilacoom Blvd location.  Chief Adams also discussed the Fire 
Prevention Safety Week videos they have been doing specifically geared towards the kids who 
are staying home more right now due to Covid and school closures. 
 
Mr. Ray Dotson asked about the Squad 21 vehicle and how that program has been going since 
the last meeting.  Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams stated he would have more information on 
that at the next meeting, but reiterated that they had been responding to the lower acuity calls 
successfully. 
 
 
POLICE CHIEF COMMENTS 

 
Chief Michael Zaro discussed the Fireworks Ordinance, stating implementation would not 
happen until 2022 and that there would be a massive education push in 2021 gearing up to 
implementation.  Discussion ensued. 
 
Chief Michael Zaro discussed the Pierce County Force Investigation Team which was being 
created and implemented.  Discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Mark Terry asked about graffiti and stated it seemed to be getting out of hand lately.  Chief 
Michael Zaro reminded everyone about MyLakewood311 and stated that was the quickest way 
to notify the City of graffiti needing to be cleaned up.  Discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Ray Dotson asked for an update on the Citizen’s Academy, expressing concern over 
protestors interfering with the class.  Chief Michael Zaro gave an update, stating that the 
protestors have not bothered class participants and the class is going well.  Discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. James Hairston asked about an update regarding the traffic improvements throughout the 
City and asked if the committee could receive periodic updates, in order to share educational 



 3 

information as the changes were made.  Discussion ensued.  Chief Michael Zaro stated he 
would ask Public Works about their educational material and have Joanna LaVergne send it 
out.  Mr. Hairston asked if we could schedule periodic updates for upcoming meetings, as well.  
Chief Zaro agreed we could make this happen. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Chair Ken Witkoe gave a recap of the joint meeting with City Council which happened in 
August.  Discussion ensued. 
 
Chair Ken Witkoe brought up the recruiting efforts.  Mr. Tod Wolf suggested posting openings 
for PSAC on Facebook neighborhood watch groups such as Lakewood Life.  Joanna LaVergne 
will keep this in mind once another position is opened up, and will advertise the opening there 
as well. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chair Ken Witkoe reminded everyone that this is the month we elect new Chair and Vice 
Chair, and opened the floor for nominations.  Mr. Alan Hart suggested they re-elect the same 
people.  Motion made, and Mark Peila seconded.    Mark Terry volunteered for the Vice Chair 
position. 
 
Vote for Chair commenced; Mr. Alan Hart motioned to re-nominate Ken Witkoe as Chair.  
Mark Peila seconded.  All ayes; Ken Witkoe was re-elected as Chair.  Vice Chair nominations 
commenced.  Mr. Hart nominated Mr. James Hairston; Mr. Hairston declined and nominated 
Mr. Mark Terry.  Mr. Mark Peila seconded.  All ayes; Mark Terry was elected as Vice Chair.   
 
Chair Ken Witkoe stated that next meeting would be December 2nd, and asked what was on the 
agenda.  Joanna LaVergne stated the only thing on the agenda was the 2021 work plan. 
Discussion ensued.  Fireworks ordinance education efforts, road structure/traffic updates, 
WPFR Squad 21 update, rail station update, Clover Creek railroad crossing update, City 
lighting plan update from Public Works were all suggested for the work plan.  Joanna will add 
these for approval/discussion at December’s meeting.  Chair Witkoe asked that Councilmember 
Brandstetter be asked if the City Council had anything they wanted PSAC to tackle in 2021.  
Joanna will ask Chief Zaro to check in with Councilmember Brandstetter. 
 
Mr. Mark Terry asked about PSAC “gear” that members could wear when attempting to recruit 
new members.  Discussion ensued.  Joanna LaVergne will check with Chief Zaro and the City 
Manager to see where that issue stands. 
 

 
REPORTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF 
 
Members discussed their Neighborhood Associations, as applicable; most are either not 
meeting or meeting via Zoom right now.   
 
 



 4 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mark Peila motioned to adjourn the meeting; all ayes.  Meeting adjourned at 6:17 p.m. 
 
 
 

  Public Safety Advisory Committee:  Attest: 
   
   

Ken Witkoe, Chair  Joanna LaVergne, Secretary  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 742 

AN ORDINANCE of the City Council of the City of Lakewood, 
Washington, amending Chapter 8.68 of the Lakewood Municipal 
Code relating to fireworks. 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the potential safety hazards inherent in the use 
of fireworks; and 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that it is in the best interest of the citizens of Lakewood 
to limit the hours in which fireworks may be discharged; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to bring the Lakewood Municipal Code in closer alignment 
with provisions of the RCW 70.77 State Fireworks Law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN as Follows: 

Section 1. That Chapter 8.68 of the Lakewood Municipal Code is amended to read as 
follows: 

8.68.010 Definitions. 

The words and phrases herein used for the purposes of this chapter shall have the meanings 
respectively ascribed to them in this section, except in those instances where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning: 

"Common Consumer fireworks" includes only such fireworks that have been defined in RCW 
70.77.136 or V./AC 212 17 035 . 

"Dangerous fireworks" includes all fireworks which do not meet the common fireworks 
definition under RCW 70.77.136. or WAC 212 17 035. 

"Fireworks stands" includes all displays and locations where fireworks are displayed in 
connection with sale of fireworks, offered for sale or are stored. Fireworks stands includes 
temporary fireworks stands as well as permanent structures where fireworks are offered for sale 
or are stored. 

"Person" includes any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation, 
estate, trust, receiver, syndicate or any other group or combination acting as a unit. 

"Public display of fireworks" means an entertainment feature where the public is admitted or 

Page 1 



permitted to view the display or discharge of dangerous fireworks. 

"Sale at retail" includes any sale or transfer, including contracts or orders for sales or transfers, 

wherein any person at a fixed location or a place of business sells, transfers or gives fireworks to 

a conswner or user. 

"Sale at wholesale" includes a sale or transfer to a retailer or any other person for resale, and 

which also includes any sale or transfer of fireworks to a permittee of a public display of 

fireworks. [Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.020 General provisions. 
Each of the following are hereby declared to be unlawful within the City: 

A. For any person to offer for sale, at retail or wholesale, or to sell, at retail or wholesale, any 

fireworks without having first obtained a permit or license to do so; 

B. For any person to possess, use or explode any dangerous fireworks or any fireworks other 

than those listed as being able to be sold to the public in WAC 212-17-198, except as specifically 
provided for public displays in this chapter; 

C. For any person to sell, possess, use or explode any fireworks except as provided in this 
chapter; 

D. For any person to sell, at retail or wholesale, or offer for sale, at retail or wholesale, any 

fireworks to be sold within the City except from 12:00 noon on June 28th through 11 :00 p.m. on 

July 4th. Fireworks may not be sold between the hours of 11 :00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. from June 
28th through July 3rd. 

E. For any person to use, discharge or explode any fireworks in a negligent or reckless manner 

or during a period other than from 11 :00 a.m. to 11 :00 p.m. on July 4th from July 3rd through 

July 5th of any year and from 11 :00 p.m. December 31st to 1 :00 a.m. January 1st. 

1. For purposes of this section, "negligent manner" means in a manner which endangers or is 

likely to endanger persons, animals or property. 

2. "Reckless manner" means in a manner with willful and wanton disregard for the safety of 

persons, animals or property. 

F. For any person to sell, at retail or wholesale, or to offer for sale, at retail or wholesale, 
fireworks to any person under the age of 16 years of age. It shall be the responsibility of any 

seller of fireworks to obtain and/or require proof of age of any customer at the time of purchase, 

which proof requirement may be satisfied by inspecting the customer's valid Washington State 
photo driver's license or valid Washington State photo identification card or the equivalent 

thereof issued by another state or jurisdiction. 

G. For any person under the age of 16 years of age to possess or to discharge any fireworks 
within the City without direct supervision of his/her parent or guardian. 

H. In addition, it shall be unlawful for any person to use, discharge or explode any type of 

firework in any manner on any school grounds or park located within the City of Lakewood or in 

Page 2 



any City rights-of-way. [Ord. 564 § 4, 2013; Ord. 416 § 1, 2006; Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.030 Sales application - Permit. 
An application for a permit to off er for sale, at retail or wholesale, or to sell, at retail or 
wholesale, any fireworks within the City shall be made at the offices of the Fire Marshal for the 
City on or before June 10th of the year for which the permit is desired. Such a permit shall be 

issued only upon the following minimum conditions and requirements: 
A. The application shall be filed with and accompanied by a permit fee of $100.00. 
B. Approval of the permit by the City Manager or designee, subsequent to an investigation by 

the City's Fire Marshal or designee. 
C. The application shall have a valid license issued by the state authorizing the holder thereof to 

engage in the business of sale of fireworks. 
D. If the applicant does not own or have the right to possess a temporary fireworks stand 
complying with the standards required for temporary fireworks stands, then the applicant shall 

have as a place for the sale of fireworks a building which is of fireproof construction and with 

proper firefighting equipment located therein, as approved by the City's Fire Marshal or his 

designee. In all cases, the placing of fireworks for display in the fireworks stand or place of sale 
shall be in such a manner as to be beyond the reach of customers. 
E. The applicant shall procure and maintain a policy or policies of public liability and property 

damage insurance with a company or companies acceptable to the City Attorney in the following 
amounts: $100,000 or more for injuries to any one person in any one accident or occurrence; 
$200,000 or more for injuries to two or more persons in any one act or occurrence; $50,000 or 

more for damage to property in any one accident or occurrence. The City shall be named as an 
additional insured in each policy providing coverage in connection with the manufacture, 

importation, exportation, regulation, possession, sale, use and/or discharge of fireworks. 
F. The permittee' s location or place business, if a temporary fireworks stand, shall be only in 
those areas or zones within the City which have been approved by the Fire Marshal of the City or 
designee. The permittee' s location or place of business, if the fireworks stand or display is 

located within a permanent structure, shall be only in those zones within the City in which 
commercial businesses may be located. 
G. The applicant shall post with the City Clerk a performance bond or cash bond in the amount 
of not less than $50.00, subject to the following conditions: The deposit shall be returned to the 

applicant only if the applicant promptly removes the temporary fireworks stand and cleans the 
area of its location to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal or his designee, or, in the case of a 
fireworks stand being located within a permanent structure, if the applicant promptly cleans the 
area of its location to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshall or his designee. In the event that the 
applicant fails to do so, the performance bond or cash deposit shall be forfeited to the City. In no 
event shall the applicant be entitled to the return of the performance bond or the cash deposited if 
he/she fails to complete the above described work by July 15th of any year. [Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

Page 3 



8.68.040 Fireworks stands. 
Fireworks stands shall conform to the requirements of Chapter 212-17 WAC and the following 

minimum standards, conditions and requirements: 

A. All fireworks stands shall be inspected and approved by the City's Fire Marshal or designee. 

Temporary fireworks stands need not comply with all of the provisions of the City's Building 

Code; provided, however, that all such temporary fireworks stands shall be erected under the 

supervision of the City's Fire Marshal or designee, or in accordance with the specified standards 

of the City's Fire Marshal or designee, including but not limited to the requirement that all 

temporary fireworks stands be constructed in a safe manner for both persons selling fireworks at 

the temporary fireworks stand and for potential customers of the temporary fireworks stand. In 

the event any fireworks stand is wired for and connected to electric power, then the wiring shall 

be approved by the City's Fire Marshal or the Electrical Inspector or their designee to ensure 

compliance with Article 502-2(a), Class II, Div. I of the N.E.C. or successor regulations. 

B. No temporary fireworks stand shall be located within 50 feet of any other building or 

structure constructed entirely or partially of combustible materials or with unprotected openings, 

nor within 20 feet of any building or structure constructed entirely of noncombustible materials; 

nor within 100 feet of any gas station, oil storage tank or premises where flammable liquids are 

kept or stored. 

C. Each fireworks stand must have at least two exits; which shall be unobstructed at all times. 

D. Each fireworks stand shall have in readily accessible places two or more extinguishers 

approved by the City's Fire Marshal or designee, and a two-gallon pail of water. 

E. All weeds, grass and combustible materials shall be cleared from the location of a fireworks 

stand and the surrounding area, a distance of not less than 20 feet measured from the exterior 

walls on each side of the fireworks stand. 

F. No smoking shall be permitted in or near a fireworks stand and fireworks stands shall be 

posted with "No Smoking" signs with letters at least two inches in height, in conspicuous places 

on all four sides of the fireworks stand. Each temporary fireworks stand or fireworks display 

within a permanent structure where fireworks are displayed and offered for sale shall have at 

least one adult in attendance at all times during which fireworks are available for sale. 

G. All unsold stock and accompanying litter shall be removed from the vicinity of the fireworks 

stand by 12:00 noon on July 5th of any year, and shall be stored and/or disposed of as provided 

in Chapter 212-17 WAC. 

H. There shall be no discharging or igniting of fireworks within 100 feet of any fireworks stand. 

I. No fireworks stand shall be located within 10 feet of a public sidewalk or street. 

J. There shall be no sleeping in any fireworks stands, nor within any structure where fireworks 

are stored. 

K. There shall be no matches, lighters, pressurized or nonpressurized propane, kerosene, gas, 

fuel oil lanterns, or similar devices, or other open flame devices stored, nor offered for sale in 

any fireworks stand, nor within any structure where fireworks are stored. 

In the event that there are any conflicts between the provisions hereof and the provisions of 

Page 4 



Chapter 212-17 WAC, the more restrictive of the two shall control. [Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.050 Public displays of fireworks. 
A. Application for Permits for Public Displays of Fireworks. Any person desiring to give or 

make a display of fireworks within the City shall, not less than 10 days in advance of the 
proposed display, make an application for a permit to operate the public display, in writing, to 
the City Manager or designee. The application shall set forth the following information: 

1. The name of the organization sponsoring the display, together with the names and addresses 

of persons actually in charge of the firing/presentation of the display; 

2. The date and time of day at which the display is to be held; 
3. The exact location planned for the display; 

4. A description setting forth the age and experience of the persons who are to do the actual 
discharging of the fireworks, and copies of their public display permit issued pursuant to RCW 
70.77.280 or comparable applicable statute; 
5. The number, type and description of fireworks to be discharged; 

6. The manner and place of storage of such fireworks prior to the display; and 
7. A diagram of the grounds on which the display is to be held showing the point at which the 

fireworks are to be discharged, the location of all buildings, highways and other lines of transit or 
communication as well as telephone, electric and other utility lines and poles and any other 

structures, facilities or objects which could present overhead obstructions, located within 500 
feet of the point of discharge. 

B. Fee for Public Display Permit. There shall be no permit fee for a public display permit other 
than the license required by the State Fire Marshal. 

C. Investigation on Site - Certificate of Compliance by City 's Fire Marshal - Notice of 

Approval by City 's Fire Marshal or Designee. Upon receipt of such application, at least 20 days 

in advance of the date set for the display, the City' s Fire Marshal or designee shall make an 
investigation of the site of the proposed display for the purpose of determining whether the 
provisions of these regulations are complied with in the case of the particular display. If the 

City's Fire Marshal or designee is satisfied that the display is lawful and there has or will be full 

compliance with all applicable laws, state and local, then the City' s Fire Marshal or designee 

shall issue a written recommendation for or against the permit which shall be kept on file in the 
City's Fire Marshal's or designee ' s office and available for review by authorized reviewing 

agencies. If the City's Fire Marshal or designee finds that the permit applicant has complied with 
all applicable laws, then the City' s Fire Marshal or designee may issue a certificate of 
compliance stating an endorsement of the display as being in conformance with all applicable 
laws and with these regulations. For any scheduled public display, applicants must submit such 

information as is deemed appropriate by the City' s law enforcement agency to ensure that 
adequate traffic control and crowd protection policing and any other measures necessary or 
appropriate for public safety have been arranged either through private security agencies or 
through a contract with a law enforcement agency and/or with commissioned law enforcement 

Page 5 



officers of the agency. A written notice that the applicant has complied with these requirements 
shall be issued by the City's Police Chief before a public display permit is issued; provided, that 
if the applicant should contract for traffic control and crowd protection policing with the City, for 
use of its law enforcement officers, in no event shall the sum agreed upon as payment for such 
policing be less than the actual expenses incurred by the City for providing such services. Such 
consideration shall be calculated in terms of personnel resources at the hourly rate for overtime 
under current collective bargaining agreements and/or rates of pay, plus that percentage which is 
paid by the public agency for fringe benefits, whichever applies, and all such sums paid under 
the contract shall be paid in accordance with procedures specified by the City' s Fire Marshal. 
D. Every public display of fireworks shall be handled by at least two competent operators 
approved by the City's Fire Marshal or designee, and every public display of fireworks shall be 
of such character, and so located, discharged or fired that, in the opinion of the City' s Fire 
Marshal or designee, after proper investigation, it would not constitute a hazard to property or 
endanger any person. 
E. A state pyrotechnics license is required for at least one operator at each public display of 
fireworks. The state licensed operator shall be the person who actually discharges or ignites the 
fireworks. 
F. A bond or certificate of insurance must be furnished to the City Manager or designee before 
a permit is issued. The bond shall be in the amount of $1,000,000 and shall be conditioned upon 
the applicant's payment of all damages to persons and property resulting from or caused by any 
public display of fireworks, or by any negligence on the part of the applicant or its agents, 
servants, employees or subcontractors in the presentation of the display. The certificate of 
insurance shall evidence a comprehensive general liability (including automobile coverage) 
insurance policy providing limits of $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence and annual 
aggregate, naming the City of Lakewood as an additional insured. Any such bond or insurance 
policy must be approved by the City Attorney. 
G. A cash deposit in the amount of $500.00 must be posted with the City Manager or designee 
at least 30 days in advance of the public display date to provide for the costs of site cleanup. The 
deposit shall be forfeited to the City if the operator fails to perform such cleanup within six days 
of the public display. If the operator properly performs the cleanup, the deposit shall be returned 
to the operator. 
H. Storage. 

1. As soon as the fireworks have been delivered to the display site, they shall be attended and 
shall remain dry. 
2. All shells shall be inspected upon delivery to the display site by the display operator. Any 
shells having tears, leaks, broken fuses or showing signs of having been wet shall be set aside 
and shall not be fired. After the display, any such shells shall be either returned to the supplier or 
destroyed according to the supplier's instructions. 
3. All fireworks at the firing site must be stored in ready boxes (substantially constructed wood 
magazines). During the display, magazines must be 25 feet upwind (in relation to the firing item) 

Page 6 



from the nearest mortar. Magazine lids must be open in the opposite direction of the firing. All 

ready boxes are to be protected by a flameproof water repellent canvas cover until emptied. 
4. The shell storage area shall be located at a minimum distance of not less than 25 feet from 

the discharge site. 
5. During the display, shells shall be stored upwind from the discharge site. If the winds shift 

during the display, the shell storage area shall be relocated to be upwind from the discharge site. 
6. There shall be at least two 2A-rated fire extinguishers (two and one-half gallons water), UL 

approved kept as widely separated as possible within the actual area where the discharging will 

occur. 
I. Preparation of Site Crowd Control. 

1. All dry grass, weeds and other combustible waste within 50 feet of the firing site shall be 

removed. 
2. The site shall be located so that the trajectory of shells shall not come within 50 feet of any 

overhead object including but not limited to aboveground telephone, telegraph or electric lines, 
trees or wooded areas. 

3. Discharged fireworks shall not come within 100 feet of any tent or canvas shelter. 

4. The firing and storage site shall be located not less than 200 feet from any building, public 
highway or railroad or other means of travel. 
5. No boats shall be allowed within 200 feet of the firing or storage site. 

6. The operators shall provide sufficient personnel to assure that no unauthorized persons are 

allowed within 200 feet of the firing and storage site. This requirement shall be in effect from 
one-half hour prior to the arrival of fireworks until the fireworks debris, equipment and fireworks 

have been removed from the site. 
7. Spectators shall be restrained behind lines or barriers at least 200 feet from the firing and 

storage locations. 
J. Installation of Mortars. 

1. Mortars shall be inspected by the operators for dents, bent ends, and cracked or broken plugs 
prior to ground placement. Mortars found to be defective in any way shall not be used. Any scale 

on the inside surface of the mortars shall be removed. 
2. Mortars shall be positioned so that the shells are carried away from spectators and buildings. 
When fired over water, mortars shall be installed at an angle of not less than 10 degrees, pointed 

towards the water. 
3. Mortars shall be either buried securely into the ground to a depth of two-thirds to three
fourths of their length or fastened securely in mortar boxes or drums. In soft ground, heavy 
timber or rock slabs shall be placed beneath the mortars to prevent their sinking or being driven 

into the ground during firing. 
4. In damp ground, a weather-resistant bag should be placed under the bottom of the mortar 
prior to placement in the ground to protect the mortar against moisture. 
5. Weather-resistant bags shall be placed over the open end of the mortar in damp weather to 
keep moisture from accumulating inside the surface of the mortar. 

Page 7 



K. Operation of the Display. 

1. The operators shall provide fire protection at the site as required by the City' s Fire Marshal 
or designee. 
2. Only permitted fireworks are authorized for use. 
3. When display is fired from a barge or vessel, a secured area shall be established around the 
barge or vessel to prevent boats from entering the fallout area. No boats shall be allowed within 
200 feet of the firing or storage site. A boat shall be on standby to remove personnel from the 
barge and otherwise respond in the case of an emergency. Additional fire extinguishers, rated 2A 
minimum, shall be on the barge and so spaced that an extinguisher shall be available at all times. 
4. If, in the opinion of the City's Fire Marshal or designee or authorized representative, lack of 
crowd control should pose a danger, the display shall be immediately discontinued until such 
time as the situation is corrected. 
5. If at any time high winds or unusually wet weather prevail such that in the opinion of the 
City's Fire Marshal or designee or authorized representative of the display operators, a definite 
fire danger exists, the public display shall be discontinued or postponed until weather conditions 
improve so as to permit safe discharge of fireworks. 
6. Light snow or mist need not cause cancellation of the display; however, all materials used in 
the display shall be protected from the weather until immediately prior to use. 
7. Display operators and assistants shall use only flashlights or approved electrical lighting for 
artificial illumination. 
8. No smoking or open flames shall be allowed within 50 feet of the firing or storage area so 
long as shells are present. Signs to this effect shall be conspicuously posted. 
9. The first shell fired shall be carefully observed to determine that its trajectory will carry it 
into the intended firing range and that the shell functions are over and any debris falls into the 
planned landing area. 
10. Mortars shall be re-angled or reset if necessary at any time during the display to properly 
adjust the trajectory or landing area. 
11. When a shell fails to ignite in the mortar, the mortar shall not be touched for a minimum of 
five minutes. After five minutes it shall be carefully flooded with water. Immediately following 
the display, the mortar shall be emptied into a bucket of water. The supplier shall be contacted as 
soon as possible for proper disposal instructions. 
12. Operators shall not attempt to repair a damaged shell nor shall they attempt to dismantle a 
dry shell. In all such cases, the supplier shall be contacted as soon as possible for proper disposal 
instructions. 
13. Operators shall not dry a wet shell, nor shall they lance or pot a wet shell for reuse. 
14. The entire firing range shall be inspected immediately following the display to locate any 
defective shells. Any such shells found shall be immediately doused with water before handling. 
The shells shall be placed in a bucket of water. The supplier shall then be contacted as soon as 
possible for proper disposal instructions. 
15. When fireworks are displayed in darkness, the sponsor shall ensure that the firing range is 

Page 8 



inspected early the following morning. 
16. Any fireworks remaining unfired after the display shall be immediately disposed of or 
removed from the City in a safe manner. 
17. The debris from discharged fireworks shall be disposed of in a proper manner. 
18. The operator shall further comply with the requirements of Chapter 212-17 WAC. In the 
event that the requirements of Chapter 212-17 WAC are inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions hereof, the more restrictive of the two shall control. 
L. The denial by the City's Fire Marshal or designee of a permit for the public display of 
fireworks may be appealed to the City Council. If no such appeal is made within 60 days, the 
denial is final. [ Ord. 416 § 1, 2006; Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.060 Sale of fireworks. 
The sale at retail of any fireworks other than "common fireworks" or fireworks authorized to be 
sold to the public in WAC 212-17-198 is prohibited; provided, however, that toy pistols, toy 
canes, toy guns or other similar devices, in which paper caps containing not more than 0.25 

grains of explosive compound for each cap is used, may be sold at any time. The transfer of 
dangerous fireworks, whether by sale, at wholesale or retail, by gift or by means of conveyance, 
or the delivery of any fireworks to any person who does not possess a valid permit issued 
pursuant to LMC 8.68.050 at the time of such transfer is prohibited. All sale of fireworks from 
stands and locations within the City of Lakewood shall be reported as taxable events within the 
City of Lakewood, and the same shall be indicated on the permit issued pursuant to this chapter, 
so that sales tax due the City shall be properly routed. [Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.070 Unclassified fireworks. 
The sale, transportation, possession or discharge of fireworks not marked with manufacturer's 
license number and the Washington State Department of Community Trade and Economic 
Development's classification, as required by Chapter 70.77 RCW or Chapter 212-17 WAC, is 
prohibited. [Ord. 416 § 1, 2006; Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.080 Exceptions. 
The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to "toy sparklers" and "toy caps" containing not 
more than 0.25 grains of explosive compound for each cap and/or sparkler. It is further provided 
that nothing contained in this chapter shall be deemed to prohibit the use of any explosive or 
flammable compound, blasting caps and similar items used for industrial purposes, nor to 
prohibit the use of any blank cartridges for use by person for bona fide ceremonial services, 
sporting events or demonstrations. This chapter shall not be construed so as to prohibit the use of 
torpedoes, flares or fuses by the operators of motor vehicles or railroads, nor by other 
transportation agencies for signal purposes. This chapter shall also not apply to the assembling, 
use and display of fireworks, of whatever nature, by any persons engaged in the production of 
fireworks when such use and display are necessary parts of the production and such persons 

Page 9 



possess requisite state permits to do so. This chapter shall also not apply to manufacturers, 

wholesalers, dealers or jobbers who possess the appropriate licenses and/or permits, from 

manufacturing or selling any kind of fireworks for direct shipment out of the City or out of the 

state, nor for manufacturing and/or selling at wholesale, any dangerous fireworks to properly 

licensed persons holding a valid permit for a public display of fireworks. [Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.090 Violation - Penalty. 
A. Any person violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a gross misdemeanor, and 

upon conviction shall be punished by a fine in an amount not exceeding $1-1-,000, or by 

imprisonment in jail for a term not exceeding 9-0-364 days, or by both. In the case of a conviction 

for a violation of this chapter, the City's Fire Marshal or designee may order the fireworks stand 

closed and may deny approval of a request by the person for a fireworks license for the next 

year. 

B. A person is guilty of a separate offense for each separate and distinct violation of any 

provisions of this chapter, and a person is guilty of a separate offense for each day during which 

he/she commits or allows to continue a violation of any provisions of this chapter. 

C. Any fireworks which are illegally sold, offered for sale, used, discharged, possessed or 

transported in violation of the provisions of this chapter or of Chapter 70.77 RCW shall be 

subject to seizure by any police officer or by the City' s Fire Marshal or his designee. 

D. For the purposes of this chapter, any person violating LMC 8.68.020(H) in a manner not 

rising to the level of negligence or recklessness as defined by LMC 8.68.020 shall have 

committed a civil infraction. The penalty for a violation of LMC 8.68.020(H) shall be punishable 

by a fine not to exceed $75.00 in addition to any other costs and assessments provided by law. 

The City shall have the burden of proving the violation by a preponderance of the evidence. 

[Ord. 416 § 1, 2006; Ord. 84 § 1, 1996.] 

8.68.100 Savings. 
If any portion of LMC 8.68.020 is held invalid, upon the determination of invalidity, LMC 

8.68.020 shall revert to that version which existed prior to the amendment set forth in Ordinance 

564 (to wit: Ordinance 416 § 1 (part), 2006). [Ord. 564 § 4, 2013.] 

Section 2. Severability. If any portion of this Ordinance or its application to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected. 

Section 3. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty 
(30) days after publication of the Ordinance Summary. 

Page 10 



ADOPTED by the City Council this 21 st day of September, 2020. 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD 

Attest: 
Don Anderson, Mayor 

l.?iidll a £cltuM4dLt1 
Briana Schumacher, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

~~ Wachter, City Attorney 

Page 11 



Lakewood Police Department 
Quarterly Crime Report

• NIBRS Incidents for 3Q2020 by 
District

• 2020 Comparison Charts

• 3Q2020 Significant Event Synopsis

• Vehicle Theft Case Arrests

3rd Quarter 2020



Lakewood Police Department

3rd Quarter 2020

3rd Quarter 2020 Calls For Service: 13,471 LE (3Q 2019- 15,352)

Lakewood PD Arrests (Felony): 96 (3Q 2019- 141)

Lakewood PD Arrests (Gross Misdemeanor): 0 (3Q 2019- 1)

Lakewood PD Arrests (Misdemeanor): 212 (3Q 2019- 299)

Warrant Arrests: 151 (3Q 2019- 158)





City of Lakewood Incident Report 3Q 2020
Quarterly Percent Change YTD Percent Change 

LD01 LD02 LD03 LD04 LD05 LD06 2Q2020 3Q2020 2Q20-3Q20 YTD2019 YTD2020 3Q2019-2020

12 38 10 10 5 20 128 97 -24.22% 300 313 4.33%
44 50 28 57 40 45 265 265 0.00% 950 800 -15.79%

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0.00% 8 4 -50.00%
0 1 0 2 0 4 9 7 -22.22% 20 28 40.00%
0 2 1 2 0 2 9 7 -22.22% 48 26 -45.83%
6 5 2 1 2 3 20 19 -5.00% 59 53 -10.17%

Totals and Averages 62 96 41 72 47 74 432 396 -8.33% 1385 1224 -11.62%

1 0 0 0 1 0 2 2 0.00% 8 6 -25.00%
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

15 23 17 28 28 23 118 134 13.56% 328 371 13.11%
2 2 4 5 0 1 15 14 -6.67% 65 36 -44.62%

39 61 43 77 42 57 286 319 11.54% 815 855 4.91%
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA 2 0 -100.00%
0 1 0 0 1 0 6 2 -66.67% 5 9 80.00%
2 6 5 9 6 11 78 39 -50.00% 180 162 -10.00%

38 51 62 165 57 81 413 454 9.93% 1271 1301 2.36%
9 33 19 37 16 21 129 136 5.43% 242 360 48.76%
4 5 3 5 2 2 15 21 40.00% 79 50 -36.71%
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

110 182 153 326 153 196 1062 1121 5.56% 2995 3150 5.18%

8 21 24 34 5 3 34 96 182.35% 292 224 -23.29%
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 NA 7 4 -42.86%
0 1 4 2 0 0 3 7 133.33% 13 13 0.00%
3 7 4 2 1 4 20 22 10.00% 61 69 13.11%

12 29 32 38 6 7 57 126 121.05% 373 310 -16.89%
184 307 226 436 206 277 1551 1643 5.93% 4753 4684 -1.45%

apon Law Violations
Totals and Averages
Grand Totals and Ave

Society Crimes
Drug

Pornography
Prostitution

Larceny
Motor Vehicle Theft

Robbery
Stolen Property

Totals and Averages

Arson

Bribery
Burglary

Counterfeiting

3rd Quarter 2020 City City

Person Crimes
Aggravated Assault

Simple Assault

Homicide

Kidnapping

Sex (Forcible)

Sex (NonForcible)

Property Crimes

Vandalism
Embezzlement

Extortion
Fraud



Comparison Crime Against Population

177 291 133 199 158 263

12.60%
9.50%

9.40%

14.10%

27.10%
27.30%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 District 6

Person Crime Comparison by District
YTD 2020

No. of Incidents % of Population

323 497 445 911 404 569

12.60%
9.50%

9.40%

14.10%

27.10%

27.30%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500
550
600
650
700
750
800
850
900
950

1000

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 District 6

Property Crime Comparison by District
YTD 2020

No. of Incidents % of Population

34 57 68 104 19 26

12.60%

9.50% 9.40%

14.10%

27.10%

27.30%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

-10
10
30
50
70
90

110
130
150
170
190
210
230
250

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 District 6

Society Crime Comparison by District
YTD 2020

No. of Incidents Percent of population

534 845 646 1214 581 858

12.60%

9.50% 9.40%

14.10%

27.10% 27.30%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 District 6

Total Group A Crime Comparison by District
YTD 2020

No. of Incidents % of Population



492

360
395 386

437

370
406

431

496

458

408 397
432

395

300

350

400

450

500

550
NIBRS Person Crime By Quarter 2017-2020



33

72

36
32

14 11

27 30

42
47 46

21 22
17

5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Western State Hospital  NIBRS Person Crime By 
Quarter 2017-2020



1109

1021

1161 1167

1126 1132

1163

942

1078

975

969 977

1052

1121

900

950

1000

1050

1100

1150

1200

NIBRS Property Crime By Quarter 2017-2020



146

128 130

94

126 122 124 123

131
119

129

127

57

126

50

70

90

110

130

150

170

NIBRS Society Crimes By Quarter 2017-2020



1747

1509

1686
1647

1689
1624

1693

1496

1705
1552

15061501
1541

1642

1350
1400
1450
1500
1550
1600
1650
1700
1750
1800

NIBRS Total Crime By Quarter 2017-2020





311
298 296

348

290
314

258

317

289

226

276

200
220
240
260
280
300
320
340
360

Total Accidents By Quarter (Reports) 2018-2020



3rd Quarter 2020 Analysis 
• 2027200039– Homicide – On 28 September, just before 0100, officers responded to 13055 Gravelly Lake Dr. for 

a shooting. According to witnesses, a car drove up to a group of people and opened fire striking the 17 year old 
victim in the head. He died at the hospital days later. Detectives worked tirelessly to identify a suspect and make 
an arrest. The suspect is currently in Pierce County jail awaiting trial. It’s believed the victim was mistaken for 
the another individual who was the intended target.

• 2025001884– Fatality Collision- On September 9th, at 9:22pm, officers responded to a single vehicle v. light pole 
collision near Washington Blvd and Edgewood Dr. The driver was severely injured and pinned in the vehicle. 
WPFR was able to extract the driver and transport to Madigan Army Medical Facility but the he died on the 
operating table. According to witnesses, the vehicle was racing another vehicle when it lost control. 

• 2022600088/2022600262 and 2024600398/2024600613 –OIS Investigation - Lakewood PD assisted in 
investigating two different Tacoma Police Department Officer Involved Shootings. In the first one (Aug. 13th), 
Tacoma Police located a murder suspect who ran and ultimately shot and killed a TPD K9 before being shot and 
injured by officers. In the second incident (Sept. 2nd), TPD officers responded to a report of shots fired. When 
officers arrived the suspect fired at police who returned fire, striking and killing the suspect. Both investigations 
are ongoing. The first investigation was conducted under mutual aid and the second was conducted under the 
newly formed PCFIT.   

• Crimes Against Persons fell from the 2nd Quarter to the 3rd Quarter of 2020 (-8.33%). Aggravated Assaults fell 
24% from 128 to 97. Simple Assaults remained exactly the same (265).It is fairly rare when Aggravated Assaults 
are the driving factor in either an increase or decrease in violent crime. 

• Crimes Against Property rose (5.6%) driven by burglary, vandalism, larceny, and vehicle theft*. A probably 
explanation for the increase has to do with the COVID 19 restrictions on jail bookings. As we’ve seen in the past, 
a few people account for a large percentage of property crime. When those people are out, they are stealing. So 
if they cannot be booked they are able to commit more crimes. See the following slide for further analysis.

• *9 of the vehicle thefts were from one incident. 9 motorcycles were stolen during a burglary of a storage container for a driving school.



83 85
93

106
93

79 78 81 77
68 64

86

129
136

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Motor Vehicle Theft 2Q2017-3Q2020



Prolific Car Thief Arrests

• The Puget Sound Auto Theft Task Force (supervised by LPD Sgt. Carroll 
and staffed by LPD Detective Jordan) arrested 5 individuals in the 
third quarter who accounted for at least 80 vehicle thefts along the   
I-5, SR512 corridors. One of the suspects estimated in an interview to 
being responsible for over 250 vehicle thefts in the past 18 months 
covering multiple jurisdictions. That same suspect was stopped in 
stolen vehicles multiple times but had to be released due to COVID 19 
booking restrictions. Through coordination with the Pierce County 
Prosecuting Attorney’s Office and the Pierce County jail, PSATT was 
able to arrest and charge all five suspects. They are currently in 
custody and awaiting trial.  



 

15-03-0106

Roundabouts
As traffic volumes increase on local 
roadways traditional intersections 
using stoplights can actually increase 
delays for drivers. Transportation 
departments around the nation are 
more frequently turning to roundabouts 
as an efficient, cost-effective way to 
improve safety and traffic flow. 

Roundabouts substantially 
decrease severe injury and fatality 
collisions and allow drivers to get 
through intersections more quickly. 
Roundabouts also provide a safer 
way for pedestrians and bicyclists to 
navigate traffic.

What is a roundabout? 
Not all roundabouts are the same. 
A modern roundabout is a circular 
intersection where drivers travel 
counterclockwise around a center 
island. Drivers yield to traffic on their 
left as they approach the circle, then 
enter the roundabout and exit at their 
desired street. Drivers will never see 
traffic lights or stop signs in a modern 
roundabout, however, some feature 
pedestrian beacons that flash to 
warn drivers of pedestrians at some 
roundabouts.

A traffic circle, common in Europe, is 
larger than a modern roundabout and 
often uses signals or stop signs. 

Five things to remember  
when driving a roundabout Rules of the Roundabout

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Information: This material can be made available in an alternate format by emailing the WSDOT Diversity/ADA Affairs team at wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov or  
by calling toll free, 855-362-4ADA(4232). Persons who are deaf or hard of hearing may make a request by calling the Washington State Relay at 711.

Title VI Statement to Public: It is the Washington State Department of Transportation’s (WSDOT) policy to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin or sex, as provided by  
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise discriminated against under any of its federally funded programs and activities. Any person who 
believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file a complaint with WSDOT’s Office of Equal Opportunity (OEO). For additional information regarding Title VI complaint procedures and/or information 
regarding our non-discrimination obligations, please contact OEO’s Title VI Coordinator Jonté Robinson at (360) 705-7082.

Signs near the roundabout show drivers 
how to navigate the intersection

20
LIMIT

SPEED

The yield sign tells drivers 
to yield to traffic already in 
the roundabout.

Drivers should look for 
pedestrians or bicyclists 
in marked crossings 
before entering or exiting 
a roundabout.

The lane choice sign shows 
drivers which lanes are 
used for right turns, straight 
through travel, left turns and 
U-turns.  

Drivers should note that 
trucks may take up both 
lanes in a roundbout.

Roundabouts are designed 
for speeds between  
15 and 25 mph.

1

2

3

4

5

Washington Roundabouts
www.wsdot.wa.gov/safety/roundabouts

Video – driving a roundabout
www.youtube.com/wsdot

Slow down when approaching  
a roundabout. 

Pick a lane as you approach a 
roundabout. To turn right, be in  
the right lane. To turn left, be in the 
left lane. To go straight, use either 
lane unless otherwise indicated.

Yield to traffic in the roundabout. 
Vehicles in the roundabout have  
the right-of-way.

Stay a safe distance behind trucks 
because they will usually use both 
lanes. Driving side-by-side a truck in 
a roundabout can be risky!

Do not stop within the  
circular portion of the roundabout.

Spring 2015

Every roundabout is a little different. Follow the arrows to get to your destination.

SR 202, Woodinville

SR 539, south of Lynden W. Main Street, Monroe

East Lake Sammamish Pwky NE, Issaquah

I-82/Valley Mall Blvd, Union Gap



Movements in a single-lane roundabout

Use the right lane to make a right turn.

Use either lane to go straight. Use the left lane to make a left turn.

Use the left lane to make a U-turn.

Slowdown as you approach a single-lane roundabout. 
Upon entering, yield to vehicles in the circle and drive 
counterclockwise to your exit.

The following rules apply to double-lane roundabouts 
and some information will be helpful for single-lane 
roundabouts as well.

How do I go straight? 
In most cases, use either the left or right lane to go straight 
in a two-lane roundabout. Yield to vehicles traveling in the 
circle coming from your left and drive counterclockwise 
while staying in your lane. Exit cautiously as cars may have 
tried to pass you on the right. Pay attention to pavement 
markings and signs as they will help guide you through  
the roundabout.

How do I make a right turn?
Make sure you are in the right lane as you approach the 
roundabout. Yield to traffic already in the circle. While 
driving counterclockwise, turn one-quarter of the way 
around the roundabout and exit.

How do I make a left turn? 
Make sure you are in the left lane as you approach the 
roundabout. Yield to traffic already in the circle. Drive 
counterclockwise three-quarters of the way around the 
circle while staying in your lane. Exit cautiously as cars 
may be trying to pass you on the right.

How do I make a U turn? 
Make sure you are in the left lane as you approach the 
roundabout. Yield to traffic already in the circle. Enter the 
circle, driving counterclockwise completely around the 
center of the roundabout. Exit cautiously as cars may  
have tried to pass you on the right.

Can I change lanes in a roundabout? 
No. You must stay in your lane once you enter a 
roundabout. Make sure you choose the correct lane before 
you enter the roundabout and stay within your lane as you 
drive the roundabout. Some double lane roundabouts have 
spiral striping (a pattern of marking that will move you from 
the inside lane to the outside lane) to position you to exit 
the roundabout easier.

Do I have to yield to entering vehicles if I’m already  
in a roundabout? 
No. If you are in a roundabout, vehicles entering the 
roundabout must yield to you. However, you must yield 
to pedestrians or bicycles in crosswalks when entering or 
exiting the roundabout.

What if an emergency vehicle approaches? 
In a roundabout, treat emergency vehicles the same way 
you would in a traditional intersection. Do not stop if you 
are in the roundabout. Continue to your exit. Once you exit 
the roundabout, pull to the right and allow the emergency 
vehicle to pass. If you see an emergency vehicle as you 
are approaching a roundabout, pull to the right to allow it 
to pass, then continue into the roundabout.

How fast should I go through a roundabout? 
As you approach a roundabout, yellow signs with black 
lettering indicate the recommended speed which is 
usually 15 or 20 mph. The lower speed allows you to make 
the turns in the roundabout cleanly and staying within your 
lane. Regardless of the recommended speed, always  
yield to vehicles in the roundabout. 

How do I use a roundabout if I’m on a bicycle? 
If you feel comfortable doing so, you can ride through the 
roundabout with traffic. You must observe the same rules 
as vehicles. You may also walk your bicycle through the 
pedestrian crossings. 

How do I use a roundabout if I’m on foot? 
Crosswalks are located on each street near the entrance 
to the roundabout. Pedestrian islands are also located 
between lanes. This means that you can cross one 
direction of traffic and have a safe place to wait in the 
median before you cross another direction of traffic. 
Although pedestrians have the right-of-way, vehicles do 
not always stop, so be cautious and make eye contact 
with the vehicle driver if possible before crossing. This 
ensures vehicles are aware of your intention to cross!

What happens if there’s a collision in the roundabout? 
Treat it like you would a collision in a traditional 
intersection. If possible, drivers involved in the collision 
should drive out of the roundabout to the shoulder of the 
road. Drivers within the roundabout should, if possible, 
drive around the collision and exit. Consider an alternate 
route if a collision is completely blocking the roundabout.

How safe is a roundabout? 
Studies have shown that roundabouts are safer than 
traditional signalized intersections, reducing the severity 
and frequency of collisions. Speeds are slower through 
a roundabout because vehicles enter the circular 
intersection which provides a speed reduction (as 
compared to a straight intersection) and all travel the 
same direction. The chance of T-bone and head-on 
collisions is virtually eliminated.

Movements in a double-lane roundabout

Studies by the FHWA and Insurance Institute for Highway Safety have shown that roundabouts typically achieve:

• A 37 percent reduction in overall collisions

• A 75 percent reduction in injury collisions

• A 90 percent reduction in fatality collisions

• A 40 percent reduction in pedestrian collisions 

• 75 percent fewer conflict points than  
a traditional intersection



Public Safety Advisory Committee (PSAC) 
2021 ANNUAL WORK PLAN AND MEETING SCHEDULE 

Members:  
Chair Ken Witkoe Vice Chair Mark Terry 
James Hairston Ray Dotson 
Mark Peila Tod Wolf 
Alan Hart  

 
Council Liaison: 

Councilmember Mike Brandstetter 
 
City Staff Support: 

Police Chief Michael Zaro 
Administrative Assistant Joanna LaVergne 

 
Meeting Schedule: 

1st Wednesday of every other month, 5:15 p.m., Lakewood Police Station 
 
2020 Work Plan: 

1. Recruitment 
2. Road Structure/Roundabouts Education Efforts and Updates 
3. Fireworks Ordinance Education Efforts 
4. Railroad Station/Clover Creek Crossing Updates 
5. City Lighting Plan Update with Public Works 
6.  

 
Date Topic(s) 
2/3 Fireworks Ordinance Education Efforts 
4/7 Public Works Presentation- City Lighting Update 
6/2 Road Structure/Roundabouts Education efforts and updates 
8/4 Railroad Station/Clover Park Crossing Updates 
10/6 Election and Work Plan for 2021 
12/1 Work Plan and Joint Meeting Prep 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
Special Events: 

Date Event 
June ?? City Council/PSAC Joint Study Session  
July ? SummerFest 

November 
29th?? 

Fallen Officer Food Drive 

 



  Primary Backup 
Tillicum/Woodbrook  
Tillicum American Lake Gardens Community 
Center 
14916 Washington Ave SW 
6:30 p.m. 1st Thursday of the Month 

 

Active James Mark P 

Lake City 
West Pierce Fire Station 22 
8517 Washington Blvd. 
7 p.m. 2nd Thursday of the Month 

 

Active   

Lakeview 
West Pierce Fire Station 20 
10928 Pacific Hwy SW 
7 p.m. 4th Thursday of the Month 

 

In 
hibernation 

No rep 
needed 

 

Springbrook/Pacific 
Centerforce 
5204 Solberg Dr SW 
6 p.m. 3rd Thursday of the month 

 

In 
hibernation 
 

No rep 
needed 

 

North Lakewood 
Elks Lodge 
6313 75th St W, Lakewood 
7 p.m. on the 4th Tuesday, every other month (Jan, 
Mar, May, Jul, Sep, Nov 

 

Active Mark P Ken 

Northeast 
West Pierce Fire Station 20 
10928 Pacific Hwy SW 
7 p.m. 3rd Tuesday of the Month 
  

In 
hibernation 

No rep 
needed 

 

Springbrook Connections 
5202 Solberg Dr SW 
2 p.m. 2nd Thursday of the month 

 
 

Active Alan  

02/06/2020 


	2020_12_2_PSAC_Agenda
	AGENDA
	PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	Regular Meeting, Wednesday, December 2, 2020 at 5:15 p.m

	DRAFT Minutes 10 7 20
	PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	Zoom Virtual Meeting
	CALL TO ORDER
	The meeting was called to order at 5:14 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	There were no public comments.
	CITY COUNCIL LIAISON COMMENTS
	No City Council member was able to be present.  City Council had a special meeting at 6 p.m.  The new Fireworks Ordinance was discussed with some questions regarding possible typos and education.
	YOUTH COUNCIL COMMENTS
	No Youth Council; liaison appointed and will be invited to December meeting.
	FIRE CHIEF COMMENTS
	Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams discussed the Fire Department’s Covid precautions and stated it had been a busy month for them.  He discussed the Graham and Bonney Lake fires which they assisted with, and even gave a shout out to LPD for their teamwo...
	Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams discussed their upcoming Fall Safety Day on October 24th, from 10-1, at the 5000 Steilacoom Blvd location.  Chief Adams also discussed the Fire Prevention Safety Week videos they have been doing specifically geared tow...
	Mr. Ray Dotson asked about the Squad 21 vehicle and how that program has been going since the last meeting.  Assistant Fire Chief Scott Adams stated he would have more information on that at the next meeting, but reiterated that they had been respondi...
	POLICE CHIEF COMMENTS
	Chief Michael Zaro discussed the Fireworks Ordinance, stating implementation would not happen until 2022 and that there would be a massive education push in 2021 gearing up to implementation.  Discussion ensued.
	Chief Michael Zaro discussed the Pierce County Force Investigation Team which was being created and implemented.  Discussion ensued.
	Mr. Mark Terry asked about graffiti and stated it seemed to be getting out of hand lately.  Chief Michael Zaro reminded everyone about MyLakewood311 and stated that was the quickest way to notify the City of graffiti needing to be cleaned up.  Discuss...
	Mr. Ray Dotson asked for an update on the Citizen’s Academy, expressing concern over protestors interfering with the class.  Chief Michael Zaro gave an update, stating that the protestors have not bothered class participants and the class is going wel...
	Mr. James Hairston asked about an update regarding the traffic improvements throughout the City and asked if the committee could receive periodic updates, in order to share educational information as the changes were made.  Discussion ensued.  Chief M...
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Chair Ken Witkoe gave a recap of the joint meeting with City Council which happened in August.  Discussion ensued.
	Chair Ken Witkoe brought up the recruiting efforts.  Mr. Tod Wolf suggested posting openings for PSAC on Facebook neighborhood watch groups such as Lakewood Life.  Joanna LaVergne will keep this in mind once another position is opened up, and will adv...
	NEW BUSINESS
	Chair Ken Witkoe reminded everyone that this is the month we elect new Chair and Vice Chair, and opened the floor for nominations.  Mr. Alan Hart suggested they re-elect the same people.  Motion made, and Mark Peila seconded.    Mark Terry volunteered...
	Vote for Chair commenced; Mr. Alan Hart motioned to re-nominate Ken Witkoe as Chair.  Mark Peila seconded.  All ayes; Ken Witkoe was re-elected as Chair.  Vice Chair nominations commenced.  Mr. Hart nominated Mr. James Hairston; Mr. Hairston declined ...
	Chair Ken Witkoe stated that next meeting would be December 2nd, and asked what was on the agenda.  Joanna LaVergne stated the only thing on the agenda was the 2021 work plan. Discussion ensued.  Fireworks ordinance education efforts, road structure/t...
	Mr. Mark Terry asked about PSAC “gear” that members could wear when attempting to recruit new members.  Discussion ensued.  Joanna LaVergne will check with Chief Zaro and the City Manager to see where that issue stands.
	REPORTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF
	Members discussed their Neighborhood Associations, as applicable; most are either not meeting or meeting via Zoom right now.
	ADJOURNMENT

	Fireworks Ordinance No. 742
	LPD 2020 3Q ReportNew
	Lakewood Police Department Quarterly Crime Report
	Lakewood Police Department�
	Slide Number 3
	City of Lakewood Incident Report 3Q 2020
	Comparison Crime Against Population
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	3rd Quarter 2020 Analysis 
	Slide Number 14
	Prolific Car Thief Arrests

	Roundabout_Statewide_English
	2021 DRAFT CABC Annual Work Plan
	Neighborhood Assoc  02-06-20
	2020_12_2_PSAC_Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA
	PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	Regular Meeting, Wednesday, December 2, 2020 at 5:15 p.m




